
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

21 October 2013 
 

Economic Scrutiny Committee 
 

A meeting of the Economic Scrutiny Committee will be held on Tuesday, 29 October 
2013 at 9.30 am in Committee Room One, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 
1YL for the transaction of the business set out on the attached Agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Tony McArdle 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Economic Scrutiny Committee  
(11 Members of the Council) 
 
Councillors T Bridges (Chairman), C Pain (Vice-Chairman), B Adams, J W Beaver, 
Mrs J Brockway, G J Ellis, R B Parker, Mrs E J Sneath, W S Webb, P Wood and 
L Wootten 
 
 

Public Document Pack





ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
TUESDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2013 

 
 
Item Title 

 
Pages  

1  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2  Declarations of Councillors Interests  
 

 

3  Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2013  
 

1 - 6 

4  Place Marketing including Communications Strategy  
(To receive a report by the Assistant Director Economy and 
Culture which sets out the purpose and objectives of marketing 
the County, and the concept of Place Marketing to enable the 
Committee to discuss priorities and focus for marketing activities) 
 

7 - 20 

5  Sustainable Green Technology - Advice to Businesses  
(To receive a report by the Head of Enterprise which provides the 
Committee with information on a project helping businesses to 'go 
green'.  Lincolnshire County Council is working in partnership with 
the University of Lincoln following receipt of funding to extend the 
scheme.  The report asks the Committee for its thoughts on 
taking activity forward into the future) 
 

21 - 24 

6  Review of Performance Indicator - Number of Jobs Created 
or Safeguarded  
(To receive a report by the Head of Regeneration which provides 
a history of how the Economic Regeneration Jobs Created or 
Safeguarded performance indicator was originally established, 
and looks at how the figure is calculated for each quarter and how 
it was proposed to refine the target to make it more relevant to a 
Commissioning Council) 
 

25 - 30 

7  Economic Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2013/14  
(To receive a report by the Scrutiny Officer which enables the 
Economic Scrutiny Committee to consider its own work 
programme for the coming year) 
 

31 - 36 

8  RAF Scampton Feasibility Study  
(To receive a report by the Head of Regeneration which provides 
the Committee with a summary of the findings of the RAF 
Feasibility Summary recently completed for Lincolnshire County 
Council and The Royal Air Force by Focus Consultants) 
 

37 - 64 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Rachel Wilson 

 
Direct Dial 01522 552107 

 
E Mail Address rachel.wilson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details set out above. 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords 
 

 



  1 

 
 ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 10 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR CHRISTOPHER PAIN (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors T Bridges (Vice-Chairman), B Adams, J W Beaver, G J Ellis, R B Parker, 
Mrs E J Sneath, W S Webb, P Wood, L Wootten and T M Trollope-Bellew 
 
Councillors: J P Churchill and C J Davie attended the meeting as observers 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
 
Jenny Gammon (Assistant Director Economy and Culture), Tracy Johnson (Scrutiny 
Officer), Jasmine Sodhi (Performance Manager) and Rachel Wilson (Democratic 
Services Officer) 
 
19     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs J Brockway. 
 
The Chief Executive reported that, having received notice under Regulation 13 of the 
Local Government (Committees and Political Groups Regulations 1990), he had 
appointed Councillor T M Trollope-Bellew as a replacement member on the 
Committee in place of Councillor Mrs J Brockway, for this meeting only. 
 
 
20     DECLARATION OF COUNCILLORS INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were received at this point in the meeting. 
 
21     MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 JULY 2013 

 
RESOLVED 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting of the Economic Scrutiny Committee 
 held on 23 July 2013 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
22     THEME PERFORMANCE QUARTER 1 

 
Consideration was given to a report which explained about the performance of 
existing schemes and how the performance was set and monitored.  It provided a 
background to the work that the Executive Councillor for Economic Development, 
Environment, Planning and Tourism and the Economic Development Services team 
would do over the coming months in setting a new programme. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 
ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
10 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 
It was reported that everything was currently on target, and so it was thought timely 
to examine the targets at this point.  It was expected that the key indicators would still 
be relevant, as the County Council was a facilitator of economic development, and so 
there was a need to understand the local economic situation. 
 
The Council's Performance Manager was also in attendance in order to provide 
further information in relation to the setting of performance targets.  The Committee 
was informed that the vision for the County Council was agreed at its full council 
meeting in 2010.  The organisational strategy focused on where the Council wanted 
to be in the future and what it would look like.  This would then be interpreted as 
activities, which would be included in service plans within the organisation.  It was 
noted that there was flexibility within the plans to change targets if it was felt that the 
targets were no longer appropriate. 
 
Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report and some of the points raised 
during discussion included the following: 

• There was a need for businesses in rural areas to have access to money from 
banks in  order to expand their businesses; 

• The financial intermediary forum which had been set up and included 
representatives from the major banks was proving to be a success; 

• Lincolnshire Investment Network was a new group and was bringing 'business 
angels' into Lincolnshire; 

• The practical signposting and networking was an important activity that the 
County Council could facilitate; 

• Food and agriculture were both sectors which could be grown in Lincolnshire; 

• The aspiration was to double the value of tourism in Lincolnshire within 20 
years; 

• There were businesses which were ready to expand but they could not find 
skilled workers; 

• There was a need to recognise that it would be the small businesses within the 
county which would drive the economic development and it was important that 
they were supported; 

• There were concerns that businesses no longer had a local business 
manager, and so the banks did not always understand how those businesses 
worked, which led to a reluctance to lend money, particularly in the case of 
businesses which relied on the summer season; 

• The Lincolnshire economy had performed relatively well compared to the rest 
of the UK; 

• It was thought that there was a shortfall of people in Lincolnshire who were 
trained up to NVQ level 4; 

• The strong sectors within the County were traditionally low skilled and wage; 

• The University of Lincoln would become a big economic driver for the County, 
as it was particularly strong in the engineering sector; 

• A contribution to the Boston Barrier project would be made when the 
Environment Agency required it; 

• A lot of the projects within economic development were long term; 

Page 2



3 
ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

• As Teal Park was nearing completion, it was queried whether this would need 
to continue to be reported on as a project, or whether in future it would be part 
of the 'jobs created/safeguarded' indicator; 

• In terms of targets, it was queried where the authority went from here as the 
yearly target for jobs created/safeguarded had been achieved in Quarter 1, 
and whether this target was meaningful.  It was questioned whether any 
investigation had been undertaken as to why this performance indicator had 
significantly overperformed. It was suggested that an explanation on this target 
could be brought back for a future meeting; 

• It was considered important that the targets were looked at by the Committee 
as they influenced the LEP and what it did. 

 

RESOLVED 
 

1. That the progress against the performance indicators be noted; 
2. That the way performance indicators were formed and monitored be noted; 
3. That a further report be brought back to the Committee which explained how 

the 'Jobs Created/Safeguarded' target for the year had been met in Quarter 1. 
 
23     LINCOLNSHIRE GROWTH PLAN 

 
Consideration was given to a report which outlined the broad content of the Strategic 
Economic Plan, which was previously known as the Lincolnshire Growth Plan.  It was 
important that the county council helped to shape the plan both in terms of what it 
contained and in terms of how it would be delivered.  This was due to the strategic 
role in economic development of the authority and its ability to deliver major schemes 
as well as the accountable body status with the LEP.  The growth plan could also 
provide the background for the council to commission economic development activity 
in the future. 
 
The emerging priorities for the Strategic Economic Plan were outlined to the 
Committee.  It was noted that this was a work in progress and was a very early draft, 
which would be considered at the LEP workshop being held on 18 September 2013. 
 
Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report, and some of the points 
raised during discussion included the following: 

• It was excellent that the county council was liaising with the district councils to 
establish their priorities as well; 

• There was a need to link up the strategies for housing growth and 
infrastructure with economic development; 

• There were still discussions taking place around the CIL and the County 
Council would work with its partners to achieve its ambitions; 

• The retail and service sectors were also strong in Lincolnshire; 

• One of the priorities which was coming through the LEP was supporting the 
growth of market towns; 

Page 3



4 
ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
10 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

• A sense of place was important, retail could define a town as somewhere to 
visit, but a lot of the retail spend was out of county.  This could be due to the 
availability of big brand stores; 

• Improved road and rail links would only be beneficial if people wanted to come 
and visit the County; 

• Members were reminded that place marketing was on the work programme for 
the October meeting; 

• It was requested that details of the board members of the LEP were circulated 
to the Committee; 

• As the County Council was becoming a  commissioning authority, it would be 
sensible to align with the LEP if it was to set the strategy and commissioning 
activities for the county; 

• It was thought that the County Council would be commissioned by the LEP to 
deliver services.  It was not necessary for the County Council to lead on 
everything.  It was more important that the money came into Lincolnshire and 
was spent in Lincolnshire; 

• Development could be driven through research into coastal defences.  The 
funding required for coastal defences was huge, and so there was a need to 
think more creatively, and develop coastline defences that  could be a tourist 
attraction as well; 

• The single biggest challenge that Lincolnshire faced was how to bridge the 
funding gap for coastal defences.  If funding was to be sought to protect the 
coastline, then strong arguments for economic development, and the potential 
growth of the area needed to be made; 

• The issue of coastal security was too big an issue for the local authority alone 
to maintain.  It needed to be a national issue; 

• A coastal inundation was listed as a significant risk on the National Risk 
Register. 

 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the broad content of the Strategic Economic Plan be noted and 
supported; 

2. That the relative priority of the actions in the plan be noted; 
 
 
24     FUNDING PROGRAMMES 

 
The Committee received a report which provided information on the further 
announcements which had been made concerning external funding for local 
economic development schemes.  The schemes affected were as follows – the EU 
transition funding strategy, the Single Local Growth Fund and the Coastal 
Communities Fund. 
 
Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report, and some of the points 
raised during discussion included the following: 

Page 4



5 
ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

• In terms of the Single Local Growth Fund approximately £1bn per year would 
be available for LEP's through a formula basis, and the remainder allocated on 
a competitive basis.  It was highlighted that there were 47 LEP's; 

• There would need to be strategic decisions regarding the ESF funding in 
relation to whether people were upskilled to level 2 to enable them to get a job, 
or to a higher level to enable them to get higher skilled jobs which would fulfil 
the needs of businesses which were in need of higher skilled workers; 

 

RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Executive Director for Communities be asked, on behalf of LCC and 
the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), to submit a strong EU funding strategy 
which took into account discussions about the Strategic Economic Plan; 

2. That officers be asked to organise a strategic seminar to take forward a strong 
and transformational bid for Coastal Communities Fund round 3. 

 
 
25     PROPOSAL FOR A SCRUTINY REVIEW ON THE IMPACT OF 

TRANSPORTATION ON MAXIMISING ECONOMIC GROWTH 
 

Consideration was given to a report which set out a proposal for a scrutiny review on 
The Impact of Transportation on Maximising Economic Growth to be carried out by a 
Task and Finish Group.  The Committee was asked to consider this as a potential 
topic for a scrutiny review, and decide whether it wished to submit a proposal to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee for approval. 
 
The Committee was provided with the opportunity to discuss the proposal and ask 
questions to the officers present, and some of the points raised during discussion 
included the following; 

• The review would look at how the economy could be driven forward by 
improvements to transport infrastructure; 

• There would be a focus on why transportation was important to the economy; 

• Councillors G Ellis, C Pain, Mrs E Sneath and W S Webb expressed an 
interest in taking part in this Task and Finish Group; 

 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the proposal for a review of The Impact of Transportation on Maximising 
Economic Growth be agreed as a suitable topic for a Task and Finish Group; 

2. That the Proposal for a Scrutiny Review be submitted to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Committee for approval; 

3. That the following members of the Economic Scrutiny Committee be identified 
as interested in participating in a potential scrutiny review if the topic was 
agreed – Councillors G Ellis, C Pain, Mrs E Sneath and W S Webb. 

 
26     ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2013/14 

 
Consideration was given to a report which provided the Committee with the 
opportunity to consider its own work programme for the coming year. 

Page 5



6 
ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
10 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 
 
Members were reminded that the next meeting would involve a visit to RAF 
Scampton, and it was suggested that the meeting start at the earlier time of 9.30am 
to enable a tour to take place.  However, further details relating to timing would be 
circulated at a later date once they had been confirmed. 
 
In relation to the LEP Growth Plan it was suggested that this come back to the 
December meeting of the Committee when the details would be more filled out. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 That the work programme be agreed, subject to the inclusion of the  additional 
item on the LEP Growth Plan. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 12.20 pm 

Page 6



  
Policy and Scrutiny 

 

Open Report on behalf of Executive Director for Communities 

 

Report to: Economic Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 29 October 2013 

Subject: Place Marketing including Communications Strategy  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This paper sets out the purpose and objectives of marketing the County, and 
the concept of Place Marketing, to enable Members to discuss priorities and 
focus for marketing activities.  It describes existing marketing, promotion and 
communications activities undertaken by Economy and Culture and Strategic 
Communications Services within Lincolnshire County Council to support 
discussion on resources available for Marketing and Communications.  The 
paper sets this in the context of parallel discussions that have been taking place 
through the Greater Lincolnshire Local Economic Partnership (GLLEP) on 
marketing and tourism promotion. 

 
 

Actions Required: 

Members are asked: 
 
1.  To note and comment on activity undetaken to date. 
 
2.  To give views on priorities, and ways to increase and make best use of 
resources. 

 

 
1. Background

 

Purpose and Objectives of Marketing the County 

 

The purpose of promoting any area is to attract and retain investment which 
increases income and prosperity for residents and businesses and creates a high 
quality of life.  Within that overall aim, objectives for individual locations need to be 
achievable and address particular opportunities or needs, specific to that area.   
 
A strong economy, natural assets, scale and critical mass of population and 
businesses all provide sound bases upon which to attract further investment.  
Areas which lack, or have lost, these attributes tend to suffer competitive 
disadvantage in trying to attract external investment and local economic drivers 
cannot compensate.  A change of image can be a valid objective to increase 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



investment, but the image built needs to be based on reality and takes time and 
resources to achieve. 
 
From research, and anecdotally, Lincolnshire does not have a poor image, but 
there is a lack of image and awareness about the area.  Its strengths are 
unrecognised by many, and there is a relatively weak proposition that investors can 
"buy into", which is restricting growth potential. This is not uncommon; many areas 
have a similar lack of strong, instantly recognisable identity, and it can be costly to 
create.  Coupled with a lack of critical mass to generate wealth and investment 
from within, related low levels of private sector development and relatively high 
infrastructure costs, the circle is hard to break without attracting external 
investment.   
 
The County has real sector specific economic strengths (the visitor economy, agri-
food and manufacturing), and natural and heritage assets that add to a high quality 
of life that is valued by those in the know, but not obvious to those not experiencing 
it. There is also a strong new message to develop and sell as Lincolnshire's 
proposition - that high quality growth is planned and welcomed to benefit the area – 
and people can get involved in creating an aspirational business and lifestyle 
location which builds on the area’s natural and economic assets – Lincoln is the 
lead attractor.  
 
Other parts of the County need a different emphasis, including more sector 
targeting, but can also fit under a broad proposition to build image and awareness.  
Notably, the Lincolnshire Coast, and housing/employment relationships with North 
and North East Lincolnshire and east of the County offer emerging opportunities. 
  
In Central Lincolnshire, 42,800 homes are planned with a population growth of 
86,000 by 2031 and 210 hectares of employment land.  With Lincoln allocated 
18,800 dwellings (44% of total), this is around a 40,000 increase in population.  Put 
another way, it's like incorporating a town the scale of Grantham into the Lincoln 
area within 20 years. The proportional increase of growth for Gainsborough is even 
greater, with significant plans too for Sleaford, Grantham and Spalding.   
 
Lessons from other areas show that an integrated approach, and marketing 
resources, can deliver balanced growth (housing, employment, leisure and retail 
facilities etc), rather than the creation of dormitory settlements. It is necessary to 
attract a range of people and organisations to buy in to Lincolnshire – those that 
will invest and deliver new facilities and infrastructure and those that will work, live, 
learn and visit here - and it is important also to value those that already do so.  
Target audiences include:  
 

• Investors and developers who provide properties which create good quality jobs 

• Tourists which lead to more investment in tourist facilities and therefore more 
jobs and wealth 

• Business decision makers who are already here to have confidence to invest 
here because they know that the county’s economy is growing. 

 
 
 

Page 8



Lincolnshire based organisations (Public and Private sectors) have told LCC and 
GLLEP that they want the area to be promoted more to benefit them in a number of 
ways, including  attracting skilled, professional and managerial workers to relocate 
to the area.  
 
It is not enough to tell people about the Lincolnshire proposition, it is also 
necessary to ‘seal the deal’, so marketing has to be backed up with effective sales 
to convert the interest and then ensure that the Lincolnshire decision lives up to 
expectations. The principles of place making, place marketing and destination 
management for tourism all follow this marketing and sales approach.   
 
LCC’s Economy Service span all aspects, from facilitating development, helping to 
improve the product, building partnerships which provide services and information, 
to ensuring businesses have access to support they need.  More can be done, but 
the scale of resources is quite limited, particularly from the private sector, 
compared to the ambitions of the area. 
 
The Concept of Place Marketing – and developing the approach with the 
Greater Lincolnshire Local Economic Partnership (GLLEP)  
 
As Members will be aware, Economy and Culture Officers are involved in the 
development and drafting of the Economic Plan on behalf of the GLLEP, and the 
Economic Scrutiny Committee has considered priorities which are shaping the 
plan.  Marketing and promotion has been confirmed as a priority activity from a 
number of discussions and work.   
 
In September 2013, a paper on Place Marketing was discussed at the GLLEP 
Board. This is available for reference. It confirmed the importance given by 
Lincolnshire businesses to promotion of the area, and the link between Visitor 
Promotion and wider place marketing.  The definition of Place Marketing, as set out 
by Visit England, is:  
 

 
 
The GLLEP Board agreed that a task and finish group should develop the place 
marketing approach and report back by January so that Place Marketing becomes 
a priority activity within the Economic Plan.  LCC officers are facilitating that work.  

In July 2013, a draft Lincolnshire Destination Management Plan (DMS) was 
considered by the GLLEP Board, following agreement that the visitor economy was 
a top three sector priority; work to develop the DMS was led by Chris Baron from 
Butlins.  

The plan sets out the vision for tourism in Lincolnshire -   “By 2020 tourism will 
be recognised as having made a real and positive change to Lincolnshire's 

Page 9



economy.  It will be seen to have delivered growth, safeguarded and created jobs, 
driven investment and had a positive impact on the quality of life for Lincolnshire 
residents.  Together, we will aim to double the real value of tourism to our economy 
by 2020" 
  
Lincolnshire County Council's Current Marketing, Promotion and 
Communications activities 
 
Two areas within LCC have expertise on Marketing and Communications: 
Economy and Culture and Strategic Communications.  There is some overlap in 
skills across the two service areas, for example both have event management 
experience, but there are also differences. Economy and Culture’s marketing is 
part of wider economic development, heritage or tourism activity; Strategic 
Communications media and communications expertise is broadly applied across 
the Council's activities, including supporting Economy and Culture, largely with a 
local audience and media. There are aspects of specialist marketing and 
communications, where the skill set and capacity does not exist in-house in either 
service area, for example, generating journalist visits and PR through specialist 
knowledge of a particular sector, eg food and agriculture. 
  
Another point of differentiation is that, generally, Economy and Culture undertake 
all activities through external partnerships, whilst Strategic Communications largely 
has an LCC corporate perspective and remit at its core. The next sections describe 
each service area's activities in more detail. 
 
Economy and Culture 
 
Economy and Culture's marketing and promotion activities are an integral part 
of Economic Development.  For example, to support the manufacturing sector, 
LCC took a lead in developing Teal Park to create a high profile, high quality 
business park site for the area, and secure investment from Siemens and other 
high value, high skill employers.   
 
We also work with the financial sector and others to ensure local business support 
fits the sector’s needs; we promote companies in the sector which in turn promotes 
that area’s credibility as a manufacturing location.  Events have been identified as 
a cost effective way of getting these messages across which also directly benefits 
local companies, eg exhibiting at the Advanced Engineering Show at NEC 
Birmingham.   
 
Lincoln Castle Revealed is a major investment in the heritage and tourism offer for 
Lincoln, so the project creates a step change in the attraction of Lincoln as a place 
to live, work and visit.  We work in partnership to develop the area’s culture and 
heritage offer which creates excitement and gives confidence to investors that it is 
a place where “things are happening”. The approach is that of place marketing, but 
so far has not addressed promotion of major housing growth. 
 
Work across investment promotion, tourism and the food sector has been brought 
together into one brand – Select Lincolnshire, which celebrates and promotes the 
best Lincolnshire has to offer both businesses and consumers. Within budget 

Page 10



constraints, Select Lincolnshire is raising the profile of Lincolnshire whether it is 
promoting and attracting investment into the county, signposting local produce 
within the County or sending the best of Lincolnshire’s food and drink across the 
UK.   
 
Economy and Culture provides a substantial role on Lincolnshire's tourism 
marketing, including: 

• LCC own the Destination Management System and associated website 
visitlincolnshire.com 

• produce an annual countywide visitor guide (self-financing) 

• deliver destination PR support  
 

Visit Lincolnshire, the county's official tourism website, attracts over 40,000 unique 
visitors each month and has been overseen by Lincolnshire County Council since 
the beginning of 2011.  The County and District Council have agreed to fund the 
website for the next three years to provide a sound footing from which to move 
forward commercially.  Funding for that period is as follows:  12/13: £55k, 13/14: 
£46k, 14/15: £36k. 

The strength of Select is that it both promotes the County externally and has built 
networks within the County.  Select Lincolnshire for Food members (230 
businesses from the hospitality, tourism and agri-food sectors) benefit from 
bespoke business support, marketing and event opportunities, regular PR and 
communications.   

LCC's aim is to ensure financial stability for Select branded activity and so has put 
the services out to tender to secure a self-financing model, led by the private 
sector. As a result, LCC is providing 3 years' funding to the Chamber of 
Commerce: 2013 - £60,000; 2014 - £48,000; 2015 - £30,000 to facilitate the 
transition and develop the scheme further.  

The marketing tool for Select Lincolnshire for Food is the Good Taste Magazine, 
which has two main roles: promoting the county and promoting and bringing 
business to members.  The magazine was developed to address a shift in the way 
people accessed tourist information and advertising and the identified need to 
create a positive lifestyle image for the county.   Independent evaluation has shown 
Members value the Magazine and for many it has had a direct positive impact upon 
their business.  There is a plan in place for Good Taste to be cost neutral to LCC 
by 2016. 

Select Lincolnshire for Business both promotes investment and development 
opportunities and provides a service to potential investors, supported through a 
network of UKTI, local authorities, agents, developers and advisors who provide 
sites and premises information to ease the relocation process. A confidential and 
free of charge service - The Lincolnshire Commercial Property Service – also 
provides additional information on demographics, financial assistance, labour 
supply, training programmes, the skills market and broadband. 

 
 
 

Page 11



A Memorandum of Understanding is in place between GLLEP and UKTI on 
engagement with potential foreign investors and managing relationships with 
oversees owned companies in the County.  Economy and Culture co-ordinate this 
on behalf of GLLEP, with North and North East Lincolnshire. 
 
The budget for investment promotion is around £80k, most of which is spent on 
events and exhibitions with their dual role of raising profile and directly supporting 
local businesses. £40k has been aligned with GLLEP to help draw down additional 
funding for GLLEP activities.  The Events and Exhibitions include:  Belton 
(investment promotion), Business Live at Lincolnshire Show ground (on behalf of 
GLLEP), GLLEP business summit, Advanced Engineering Show, MIPM (Property 
and investment) (on behalf of GLLEP), East Midlands Property Show, Linc up Live.  
These events are evaluated for quality, for example a comment from Belton 
included "it was an excellent eventK..information gathering and networkingK 
enabling us to consider buying local and partnership working". 
 
Outcomes can be achieved over a long period, as with investment enquiries.  For 
example, a hotel development in Lincoln from an Enquiry at MIPIM property show 
converted many months later.  
 
Strategic Communications 
 
The strategic communications team helps to promote the work of the council, 
protecting and improving the authority's reputation. It encourages an integrated 
approach to ensure communications are as effective and efficient as possible.  Up 
until now, strategic communications have not been involved in many aspects of 
place marketing for Lincolnshire.  However, the Service area's position at the 
centre of the organisation with the team of strategic communicators, digital 
engagement team, a designer and an events manager, put them in a good position 
to add value and help oversee any integrated communication campaign. 

Planning 
 
The team creates tailored communications plans to meet specific objectives, 
ensuring that the right messages, get to the right people in the right way.  
 
This ranges from promoting one-off events, such as an exhibition at The Collection, 
to providing on-going support for long-term projects and campaigns, like the 
countywide roll out of superfast broadband. It also involves overseeing the work of 
any outside agencies brought in to support specific projects.  
 
Media 
 
One of the main elements of the team's work is to secure media space for council 
activities. A recent example is the widespread and on-going coverage achieved for 
the major improvements taking place at Lincoln Castle.  
 
To do this, the team produces and distributes news releases to regional, national 
and trade-specific media. It also deals with press enquiries, providing statements 
from an appropriate spokesperson. This is particularly important when dealing with 

Page 12



contentious issues as it ensures that the council has the opportunity to explain its 
actions.  
 
The team monitors council-related media coverage on a daily basis, allowing it to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its communications.  
 
Digital engagement  
 
The digital engagement team works to increase the web-presence of council 
activities, making relevant information easier to find.  
 
It can help set up project-specific social media accounts where appropriate, 
providing advice on how best to manage these. Examples within Economy and 
Culture include the Twitter accounts for The Collection, onlincolnshire and 
Gainsborough Old Hall.  
 
The team can also produce short videos to add an extra dimension to promotional 
activities.  
 
Design  
 
The council's designer produces a range of artwork to assist in promoting council 
activities.  Among recent examples is the range of materials created for the 
onlincolnshire programme. 
 
This is generally more cost-effective than employing an outside design agency. 
However, when there isn't the capacity to do a piece of work in-house, the designer 
can suggest improvements and provide advice on the correct use of council 
branding.  
 
The designer also helps secure the best price for print work.   
 
County News 
 
One of the main audiences Economy and Culture often wishes to reach is county 
residents and businesses. Strategic communications helps this through its 
quarterly publication, County News. This is delivered to all 334,000 households in 
the county, and includes regular features on the work of Economy and Culture, as 
well as a two page events listing.  
 
Events 
 
The strategic communications team employs an officer who can advise on all 
aspects of event management. This includes recommending appropriate venues 
and securing the best price possible. The events officer is also responsible for 
overseeing the council's presence at the Lincolnshire Show, a key opportunity for 
Economy and Culture to promote its work.  
 

 

Page 13



Suggestions to Develop Place Marketing and make better use of resources  
 

a) Working with GLLEP  

The GLLEP paper sets out that the ambitions and scale of growth planned for parts 
of the area mean there is a need to make a step change in the priority given to 
place marketing and establish the activity as an important part of the Strategic 
Economic Plan.   

The recommendation to GLLEP was that it should commission a group, co-
ordinated by LCC, which involves experienced private and public sector marketing 
professionals to develop the place marketing approach which is collaborative and 
co-ordinated, to the degree necessary to achieve impact.  The group’s work should 
cover: 

o Identify, and make accessible, all marketing activity being done to date 
and practical ways of sharing information to ease co-ordination 

o Identifying win/wins for organisations and partnerships and activities to 
build upon in a larger scale approach 

o Engage more fully with local stakeholders who have identified marketing 
as an important  priority about what they would be prepared to commit in 
resources, and how this could be taken forward  

o Work on short term opportunities and wins – notably 2015 high profile 
media and events programme to celebrate Lincoln Castle Revealed and 
the Magna Carta 

o In parallel, set out vision and shape long term plans  and set objectives 
and targets 

o Develop champions scheme – and how it would be implemented 
o Confirm and research target audiences 
o Develop place, activity and organisation framework for delivery 
o Scope image and branding and campaign approach – and how it should 

be implemented 
o How to achieve a significant and long term injection of funding and 

deliver capacity into marketing and promotion 
 

b) Greater co-ordination within LCC 
 
Activity leads within Economy and Culture and Strategic Communications agree 
greater co-ordination of activities would add value.  It has been put in place that the 
service areas should meet regularly to identify activities, allocate internal resource 
where this is possible, or to agree situations where an external resource may be 
required. 
 
The immediate priority is to work together on ensuring maximum promotion of 
Lincoln Castle Revealed and the Magna Carta celebrations in 2015 as the focus for 
promotion of Lincoln and all it has to offer as an attractive place, to live, work, 
invest and visit. Aligned to that, the role of Lincolnshire County Council in 
facilitating this and other projects which improve places for the future should be 
communicated. Appendix A sets out the work in place so far and planned up to 
2015, which will be developed further through joint working.  
 

Page 14



2. Conclusion 
 
Resources for marketing have been reduced by LCC and other organisations, but 
significant activities are still being undertaken. To make the step change needed to 
promote the area, work being taken forward will be reported to GLLEP in January.  
Work on 2015 as a major opportunity to promote the area is also being planned in 
detail and will be the focus of increased joint working between Economy and 
Culture and Strategic Communications.   
 
3. Consultation 
 
 
 

 

 
 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

n/a 
 

 

4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Lincoln Castle Revealed Marketing 2013-15 

 
 

5. Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

The role of Place 
Marketing in achieving 
our Growth Ambitions 
(GLLEP Board 18-09-
13) 

Economy & Culture, City Hall, Lincoln 

Visitor Economy: 
Destination 
Management Plan 
(GLLEP Board 25-07-
13) 

Economy & Culture, City Hall, Lincoln 

 
 
 
This report was written by Jenny Gammon, who can be contacted on 01522 
550511 or jenny.gammon@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A  

Lincoln Castle Revealed 

Marketing 2013 – 15 

Lincoln Castle Revealed (LCR) will be a key milestone in the development of the city 

of Lincoln.  We will ensure that its significance is reflected in how we intend to 

market the new Castle as an all season, year round internationally important heritage 

and visitor attraction. 

In developing the marketing strategy we have drawn on the marketing analysis that 

we have undertaken for  the  Castle,  visitor  surveys  we have  conducted,  meetings  

with  individual  stakeholders  and  drawn  on  our intimate knowledge of the area.  

We have also taken the approach which has been successful with other projects we 

have delivered, not to see the site in isolation, but a key heritage site and visitor 

attraction within  the  City  and  County  that  needs  to  work  collaboratively  to  

draw  in  and  engage  with  the  local community,  day  trippers  and  tourists  as  by  

combining  resources  we  will  be  able  to  take  a  more imaginative approach to 

marketing ensuring a greater impact.  

We try and think like a visitor, we wouldn’t assume that their Castle visit is their sole 

purpose, but rather that it is an integral experience of the day or short break that 

includes other elements such as shopping, eating, visiting other attractions and 

going for a walk. We add in all the opportunities so that the whole becomes 

irresistible. Particularly key is telling the ‘back story’ as people love the behind the 

scenes detail.  

We  are  also  mindful  of  the  current  financial  situation  and  opportunities  that  

are  being  presented through new  technologies. We  know  that  visitors  find  out  

about  the  Castle  through  the  internet  and word of mouth recommendation. We 

are not therefore looking at traditional promotional print unless it fulfils the above, but 

concentrating on:  

• The  product  –  we  intend  to  deliver  an  outstanding  experience  for  
visitors  whether  on  an independent, group or education visit to the grounds, 
Walls, Prison, Magna Carta or the whole site  

• Digital and direct marketing which will include a LCR website  

• Collaboration and engagement with public/private partners in the tourism and 
media industries, community and education sectors  

• Public relations activity (PR) to capture people’s attention and generate 
positive word of mouth and stories about LCR  

• Using anniversaries and events to raise awareness of Magna Carta and the 
history of Lincoln Castle resulting in more PR and repeat visitors 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Some key points of our marketing will be as follows: 

Events 

The schedule of marketing activity focuses on: 

1. Key milestones in the development of Lincoln Castle Revealed 

2. The grand opening 

3. Post opening and promotion of on-going events and activities to maintain 

momentum and ensure future sustainability 

Marketing event activities for 2015 fall into the following areas: 

1. Academic Programme – e.g Conference, Youth Forum 

2. Magna Carta 800th Anniversary Celebrations 

3. Support Celebratory 2015 events e.g Lincolnshire's Great Exhibition 2015, 

Three Choirs  Festival 

4. Official Opening 

Bids to the Arts Council for England (ACE) are being developed to provide capacity 

and co-ordination of activities across a broad artistic and family friendly programme 

of events. 

The educational programme around Magna Carta necessitates a long lead up with 

the start earlier than September 2014 and culminating in a Pageant.  Ideas mooted 

included: 

• Links to Eastern Europeans through EMTEC; Write your own Magna Carta;  

Lecture series, eg. Colin Powell, Clintons, Tony Blair; Speaker of the House of 

Commons is booked to attend 

• Lincoln University is leading on this programme of activity in partnership with 

Lincolnshire County Council, Lincoln Cathedral and key partners in the City. 

• June 2015: Monday 15th June is the date of the anniversary and utilising the 

weekend before and after this date we propose to create an 8 Day Festival (each 

day representing a century for the 800th anniversary of Magna Carta) 

Activity over the eight days included the following suggestions: 

Use lighting displays to project Magna Carta and image montages onto the 

Cathedral and Castle Walls; Music and fireworks for the big event; Protest songs to 

celebrate freedom of speech;  Street theatre;  Graffiti freedoms; The right to dance;  

Sound installations to maximise any performances.  

Page 18



July 2015: OPENING ‘The Big Reveal’ with Royal visit 

Build up (gradual revealing) 

One Year Countdown from June 2014 

Bi-monthly one day festivals with a mix of family and arts activities, incorporating: 

• Performances in the Male Prison, Walls or promenade performances, which 

could potentially encourage visitors up Steep Hill.  Tie-in big name actors like 

John Hurt or Daniel Day-Lewis that have connections with Lincoln.  Exploit 

any political or skills connections. 

• Temporary structures/sculptures, eg. Archers in Castle Walls (in willow work 

from HSC), borrow from Arts Council Collections 

• Medieval Fayre and Buskers 

Ideas for the grand opening included:  Red Arrows/BBMF Flypast;  Parachuting;  

Chelsea Flower type exhibition incorporating vegetable/food displays and potentially 

utilising the ‘arches’ style from the branding;  Big Picnic of Lincolnshire food with turf 

laid between the Castle and Cathedral;  Music/concert making use of amphitheatre 

surroundings;   Use light displays to maximise the ‘arches’ from branding and project 

forthcoming events;  Sound and vision through suite of poems from Poet Laureate 

and open Tennyson Centre;  Sculptures/structures as a permanent memorial to the 

opening, eg. Anthony Gormley sculpture, Arts Council or memorial to Magna Carta 

sealing, which could maximise photographic opportunities and may lead to trails. 

Target Audiences: 

• Monitoring current visitor numbers, what percentage is out/in county currently 

visiting Castle? Acquire a segmentation breakdown of visitors (e.g. Experian 

Group) and tailoring marketing messages, e.g. Family 

• Large County with a population of over 720,000, which will be targeted to 

‘Return’ to Lincolnshire 

• Need to ensure the marketing and themes are fun, and avoid less appealing 

themes of legal and justice 

• Maximise the new visitor experience/exciting/celebrate story 

Press 

• Historic Lincoln Revealed Newsletter 

• Visit Lincolnshire website and visitor guide 

• Internal Comms 

• Direct working with the travel press  – including press releases, targeted 

comms, familiarisation trips and media packs 

Page 19



• Networking and talks to groups, eg. WI, Rotary, etc.  

• Good Taste 

• Award applications 

• Film tourism, eg. Downton 

• Stories, e.g sarcophagus – The One Show and History Channel 

Digital 

• Website Development, creation and promotion and SEO activity 

• App development 

• Social media, incorporating Blog, YouTube, Twitter, Facebook, Pinterest, etc.  

• Digital communications – e-newsletters 

Marketing 

• Advertising eg. utilising buying power through agencies  

• Campaigns eg. Visit England  

• Direct mail 

• Joint promotions eg. Monopoly launch, EM Trains and P&O Ferries 

• On pack promotions eg. capitalising on our relationships with Select 
Lincolnshire members  

• Competitions eg. Bremmerhaven Festival with NE Lincs  

• Signage eg. lamppost banners  

• Travel packs for Lincolnshire, eg. making connections across the county  

• Motivating tourist industry through fam visits in Jan-Mar 2015 
 

Measuring success 

• Focus groups 

• Research 

• Evaluation 

Page 20



   
Policy and Scrutiny 

 

Open Report on behalf of Executive Director for Communities 

 

Report to: Economic Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 29 October 2013 

Subject: Sustainable green technology - advice to businesses  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

LCC has recently attracted funding to extend its scheme to help businesses "go 
green" - working in partnership with the University of Lincoln. This paper 
explains about the project and asks members for thoughts on taking activity 
forward into the future. 

 
 

Actions Required: 

Members are asked to: 
 

1.  Note the Council's Resource Efficiency Business Support programme 
successes, despite the economic conditions it operated under. 
 

2.  Consider future priority projects to take forward in the 2014-2020 EU 
programme, fitting with the key themes of SME competiviteness and Low 
Carbon. 

 

 
1. Background 

 
SUSTAIN Lincolnshire Phase 1 

Lincolnshire County Council's 3 year £1.4 m ERDF funded Resource Efficiency 
Business support project finished on 30 June 2013. The three year project aimed 
to inform businesses about the opportunities around sustainable development and 
resource efficiency through RE audits, demonstrator projects and collaborative 
networks. By the end of the 3 year period the project had achieved the following 
results:- 
 

 Target Achieved % Achieved 

No of businesses assisted to improve 
performance 

85 120 141% 

No of businesses engaged in new 
collaborations with a UK Knowledge base 

8 9 113% 

No of businesses improving performance 45 45 100% 

No jobs created 4.5 8.8 195% 

GVA resulting from businesses improving 
performance through resource efficiency 

 345622.94 142% 

Public and private investment levered £500,000 £522,605 105% 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



SUSTAIN Lincolnshire Phase II 

 

Following the success of this project, the Enterprise Growth team developed a 
'Phase 2' ERDF funding bid in partnership with the University of Lincoln and LCC's 
Environmental Sustainability Team. The £1.05m 2 year project has been approved, 
drawing down £420,440 of EU funding. The project began on 1st August 2013 and 
will provide the following elements of support:- 
 

One to one Support 

This is the first step for businesses engaging in the project. Businesses will receive 
a resource efficiency audit identifying areas for action, as well as an action plan, 
which would include suggestion of measures such as but not limited to: 

• Insulation of buildings to stop the loss of heat 

• Installation of resource efficient equipment to reduce energy consumption such 
as, new boilers, LED lighting, voltage optimisers etc.  

• Installation of renewable technologies such as Solar Photovoltaic Panels CHP 
boilers, wind turbines, air source/ground source heat pumps, biomass boilers 
etc. 

• Support to develop environmental management systems to help businesses 
gain ISO 14001 accreditation or equivalent will also be provided through this 
element. This element will be procured at the start of the programme. 

 

Development of the Circular Economy 

The University of Lincoln will develop clusters for businesses with common 
resource issues. Forming collaborative groups to implement Circular Economy 
principles of identifying and re-using waste streams within and between 
companies, businesses will examine, develop and share best practice. Through 
these clusters, businesses will access proven technology that is potentially useful 
to improve resource efficiency, but currently constrained in their use within their 
sectors. This will involve new interactions with a knowledge base for at least 18 
businesses. 

They will form Knowledge Transfer Research Collaborations (KTRCs) around 
themes of innovative, sustainable business practices.  The University will target 
smaller SMEs that have expressed an interest in undertaking research with the 
University, but have been unable to do so due to lack of funding.  These 
partnerships will be short timescale, and will be used to test a concept or prepare 
the evidence base on which to secure a full KTP application or other funds (ie 
through the Technology Strategy Board) to facilitate undertaking more substantial 
research projects. 

SMEs will be encouraged and supported to apply for funding such as the TSB 
Innovation vouchers and SMART funding. This will be facilitated through the 
collaborative groups or through KTRCs. 

New technologies and equipment will be demonstrated through workshops and 
master classes and webinars. SMEs will be given the chance to use the equipment 
for trials, either at their own facilities for smaller pieces of equipment, or on-site for 

Page 22



the larger pieces of equipment that are located at the University’s Holbeach and 
Lincoln campus. Case studies to show the difference in utility bills or material 
usage as a result of installing/using technologies selected will be publicised both 
on site and on the SUSTAIN Lincolnshire website. In addition to this energy 
efficient and renewable technologies will be demonstrated at locations throughout 
the county and publicised on site and the SUSTAIN Lincolnshire website. 

Green Supply Chain Development 

Opportunities of accessing new markets by diversifying into the supply of green 
goods and services, as well as driving resource efficiencies throughout the supply 
chain will be highlighted to SMEs. 

Despite some growth in the offer from within Lincolnshire, operation and 
maintenance of renewable technologies continue to be brought in to Lincolnshire 
from outside of the County. County SMEs will be informed of the opportunities to 
form part of the green supply chains, such as (but not limited to) the Green Deal, 
Biomass and Straw as well as opportunities around the Offshore wind industry.  

Offshore wind generation offers the potential to considerably expand the UK’s 
renewable energy content. The UK is number one in the world for offshore wind 
power generation in terms of installed capacity, and we have the biggest pipeline 
up to 2020. Offshore wind farms, both planned and existing off the east coast 
provide a huge opportunity to Lincolnshire SMEs to diversify and become part of 
the supply chain. 

Following detailed research and an extensive public consultation, Energy from 
Waste (EfW) technology emerged as the solution to Lincolnshire’s waste problem. 
It provides a sustainable, safe and affordable waste treatment solution and allows 
electricity to be produced from waste which isn’t recycled or composted. 
Lincolnshire County Council contracted FCC to design, build and operate a new 
EfW facility which is built and currently undergoing hot commissioning.  Previous 
studies have found that developing a thermal network based on Hykeham EfW 
plant’s heat supply could provide low cost, low carbon heat to consumers and 
economic benefits for LCC.   Working with LCC's Sustainability Team and FCC, the 
programme will develop a strategy and action plan to develop 'District Heat 
Network' principally to identify 'high heat' businesses, and promote the 
environmental and financial benefits that would be realised by switching to district 
heat. 

2. Conclusion
 
This project will meet a clear need in the local economy. 
 
3. Consultation 
 
 
 

 

 
 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

n/a 
 

 
 

Page 23



4. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
 
This report was written by Justin Brown, who can be contacted on 01522 550630 
or justin.brown@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



   
Policy and Scrutiny 

 

Open Report on behalf of Executive Director for Communities 

 

Report to: Economic Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 29 October 2013 

Subject: 
Review Of Performance Target - Jobs Created or 
Safeguarded  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This paper provides a commentary identifying how the Economic Regeneration 
Jobs Created or Safeguarded Performance indicator was originally established, 
looks at how the figure is calculated for each quarter and how we propose to 
refine the target to make it more relevant to a Commissioning Council. 
 

 

Actions Required: 

It is recommended that members: 
 
Note the content of the report and agree to adopt the new target for the 2014/15 
financial year, which will be based on the actual 2013/14 performance as a 
baseline. 
 

 
1. Background
 
The Jobs Created or Safeguarded target is one of the few indicators within 
Economic Regeneration's Service plans that pulls through to the Corporate 
Business Plan. It is an important target therefore as it represents one of the few 
measures that the council can use to judge the value of its investment into 
Economic Development as opposed to other services. 
 
The target is also important as it acts as a general barometer of the impact of our 
services and initiatives on the population of Lincolnshire. 
 
This indicator is one which has been monitored and reported upon by the 
Economic Regeneration team since the 2001/02 financial year. Between 2001/2 
and 2004/5 the target was an annual figure increasing from 245 (jobs created or 
safeguarded per year) to 273 jobs per year. 
 
In 2005/06 a revised method of calculation was introduced to reflect the LPSAII ( a 
Central government Performance Improvement Initiative) challenge. This ran until 
2008/9 and was a rolling three year aggregate target starting as 2137 jobs in 
2005/6 falling to 2077 in 2008/9. Disaggregating the three year target indicates that 

Agenda Item 6

Page 25



we were expected to deliver approximately 690 jobs created or safeguarded per 
year with the benefit of enhanced funding of activities that would deliver against the 
target. 
 
Over the period 2000/01 to 2008/09 only jobs created or safeguarded through 
Inward Investment or Business Aftercare activities were measured. 
 
The Core Offer process of 2010/11 brought about a reshaping of the council's 
services and a need to redraft business plans. The target that was adopted for 
Jobs Created or Safeguarded was an extrapolation of the pre LPSAII Target, 
tweaked to take account of the recessionary circumstances. 
 
Recording Performance Against The Target 
 
The Jobs Created and Safeguarded output for Economic Regeneration is recorded 
and monitored through the Engage CRM (Customer Relationship Management) 
system. Job outputs from all activities undertaken by the Economic Regeneration 
Department are recorded. 
 
Performance Target Analysis 
 
The Jobs Created And Safeguarded performance target, as currently expressed in 
the Council's business plan has a number of identified weaknesses. In summary 
these are: 
 
The target was set using historic performance data derived by looking at jobs 
created through Inward Investment Activity. We now record and monitor data on 
jobs created and safeguarded through all of our activity strands. We are therefore 
not comparing apples with apples. 
 
Our target can be skewed by the delivery of a large number of jobs in one year 
arising from activity delivered over a number of years. For example Teal Park took 
five years to develop and then delivered 600 jobs safeguarded in one year with 
Siemens relocation. 
 
Our current target was set based upon evidence gathered over a recessionary 
period. 
 
Resetting the Target 
 
It is recognised going forward that our target needs to be made more relevant.  
 
If outputs from all our activities are going to contribute to the annual target then the 
target needs to be set using a baseline year. 2013/14 is the first full year in which 
outputs from all of our activities have been recorded. It is proposed that the actual 
performance at the end of this year should form the baseline for future targets. 
 
It is also considered that as we move to become a Commissioning Council, 
members may value the ability to see how the investment of money and resources 
into different types of economic development activity delivers differing quantums of 

Page 26



job outputs (leading potentially to the ability to roughly model how varying 
packages of services will impact on jobs created). Some minor tweaks to the 
reporting module within the Engage CRM system should allow jobs created and 
safeguarded figures for each of our main areas of activity to be measured.  
 
 
2. Conclusion
 
The weaknesses of our current jobs created and safeguarded performance target 
have been identified and articulated. 
 
It is proposed that a stronger more appropriate performance target can be derived 
by using the current performance year 2013/14 to set a baseline. 
 
By upgrading our CRM system we anticipate being able to disaggregate jobs 
created and safeguarded performance information against defined areas of 
economic activity. 
 
3. Consultation 
 
 
 

 

 
 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

n/a 
 

 
 

4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Graph showing historic Jobs Created Safeguarded Target 

 
 

5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
 
This report was written by Paul Wheatley, who can be contacted on 01522 550600 
or Paul.wheatley@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Jo
b

s 
C

re
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 -
 R

e
v

ie
w

 O
f 

H
is

to
ri

c 
T

a
rg

e
t 

F
ig

u
re

s

2
0

0
1

/2
2

0
0

2
/3

2
0

0
3

/4
2

0
0

4
/5

2
0

0
5

/6
2

0
0

6
/7

2
0

0
7

/8
2

0
0

8
/9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

0
1

1
/1

2
2

0
1

2
/1

3
2

0
1

3
/1

4
2

0
1

4
/1

5

In
w

a
rd

 I
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

t
2

4
5

2
5

2
2

6
2

2
7

3
2

7
3

2
6

2

LP
S

A
II

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

1
3

7
2

1
5

3
2

0
7

7
2

0
0

0

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 P
la

n
3

3
0

3
8

0
4

8
2

0

5
0

0

1
0

0
0

1
5

0
0

2
0

0
0

2
5

0
0

2001/2

2002/3

2003/4

2004/5

2005/6

2006/7

2007/8

2008/9

2009/10

2010/11

20011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

Jo
b

s 
C

re
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 -
 R

e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

H
is

to
ri

c 

T
ra

g
e

t 
F

ig
u

re
s 

In
w

a
rd

 I
n

ve
st

m
e

n
t

LP
S

A
II

 T
a

rg
e

t

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 P
la

n

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



  
Policy and Scrutiny 

 

Open Report on behalf of Executive Director Performance and Governance 

 

Report to: Economic Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 29 October 2013 

Subject: 
Economic Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2013/14  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This item enables the Economic Scrutiny Committee to consider its own work 
programme for the coming year.  
 

 

Actions Required: 

To comment and agree on the content of the work programme, as set out in 
Appendix A to this report.  
 

 
1. Background 

 
Current Work Programme 
 
At every meeting of the Committee, Members are invited to consider their future 
Work Programme and to agree on items to be included in the Work Programme. 
The current work programme for the Committee is attached at Appendix A to this 
report.  
 
Forward Plan 
 
Also attached at Appendix B for the Committee’s consideration is a list of the 
intended decisions of the Executive or Executive Councillor for Economic 
Development, Environment, Planning, Tourism, which fall within the remit of the 
Economic Scrutiny Committee.   
 
Scrutiny Activity Definitions    

 
Set out below are the definitions used to describe the types of scrutiny, relating to 
the items:  

 
Budget Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising the previous year’s budget, the 
current year’s budget or proposals for the future year’s budget.  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



Pre-Decision Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising a proposal, prior to a 
decision on the proposal by the Executive, the Executive Councillor or a senior 
officer. 
 
Performance Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising periodic performance, issue 
specific performance or external inspection reports.    
 
Policy Development - The Committee is involved in the development of policy, 
usually at an early stage, where a range of options are being considered.  
 
Consultation - The Committee is responding to (or making arrangements to 
respond to) a consultation, either formally or informally. This includes pre-
consultation engagement.   
 
Status Report - The Committee is considering a topic for the first time where a 
specific issue has been raised or members wish to gain a greater understanding.  
 
Update Report - The Committee is scrutinising an item following earlier 
consideration.   
 
Scrutiny Review Activity - This includes discussion on possible scrutiny review 
items; finalising the scoping for the review; monitoring or interim reports; approval 
of the final report; and the response to the report.   
 
2. Conclusion
 

That consideration is given to the content of this report.
 
3. Consultation 
 
 

 
 

 

 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

No policy proofing is required for this report. 
 

 
4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Economic Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

Appendix B Economy Services Forward Plan 

 

5. Background Papers 
 

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Tracy Johnson, who can be contacted on 01522 552164 
or tracy.johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 32



 

 

  APPENDIX A 
 

ECONOMIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Chairman: Councillor Tony Bridges  
Vice Chairman: Councillor Chris Pain  
 

29 October 2013 (9.30am) followed by Visit to RAF Scampton (11.30am) 

Item  Contributor Purpose 

Place Marketing including 
Comms Strategy 

Jenny Gammon 
Assistant Director 
Economy and Culture 
 
Karen Spencer 
Strategic Communications 
Manager 

Status Report 

Sustainable Green 
Technology - Advice to 
Businesses 

Justin Brown  
Head of Enterprise  
 
Paul Wheatley  
Head of Regeneration 

Status Report 

Review of Performance 
Target Jobs Created or 
Safeguarded 

Paul Wheatley Performance Scrutiny 

RAF Scampton Feasibility 
Study 

Paul Wheatley  
 

Status Report 

 

10 December 2013   

Item  Contributor Purpose 

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 2 

Justin Brown Performance Scrutiny 

LEP Growth Plan Update Justin Brown Update Report 

Business Sites Paul Wheatley Policy Development 

Business Growth Samantha Harrison 
Enterprise Growth Team 
Leader 

Policy Development 

Skills Andrew Brooks  
Employment and 
Skills Team Leader 

Policy Development 

 

28 January 2014   

Item  Contributor Purpose 

Budget Proposals for 
2014/15  

Jenny Gammon 
 
Dave Simpson, Head of 
Finance - Communities 
and Corporate 

Budget Scrutiny 

 
 

11 March 2014   

Page 33



 

 

Item  Contributor Purpose 

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 3 

Justin Brown Performance Scrutiny 

 
 

29 April 2014   

Item  Contributor Purpose 

   

 
 

10 June 2014   

Item  Contributor Purpose 

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 4 and Year End 

Justin Brown Performance Scrutiny 

 
 

Items to be scheduled: 
 
Broadband Update 
Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

 
 

For more information about the work of the Economic Scrutiny Committee please 
contact Tracy Johnson, Scrutiny Officer, on 01522 552164 or by e-mail at 

tracy.johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 34



APPENDIX B 

 
 

 

 

 

         

FORWARD PLAN OF DECISIONS RELATING TO ECONOMY SERVICES FROM 1 OCTOBER 2013 

 

 

DEC 
REF 
 
 

MATTERS 
FOR DECISION 

REPORT 
STATUS 

DECISION 
MAKER AND DATE 
OF DECISION 

PEOPLE/GROUPS 
CONSULTED PRIOR  
TO DECISION 

DOCUMENTS TO 
BE CONSIDERED 

OFFICER(S) FROM WHOM FURTHER 
INFORMATION CAN BE OBTAINED AND 
REPRESENTATIONS MADE  
(All officers are based at county Offices, 
Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL unless 
otherwise stated) 

  DIVISIONS  
AFFECTED 

I005451 
 

Economic Regeneration 
Capital Scheme Appraisal 

 

Open Executive Councillor: 
Policy, Finance, 
Property, 
Communications, 
Procurement, 
Commissioning 
 
21 Nov 2013 

Economic Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Report Head of Regeneration 
e-mail: 
paul.wheatley@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01522 550600 

 

 

I005452 
 

Economic Regeneration 
Capital Scheme Appraisal 

 

Open Executive Councillor: 
Policy, Finance, 
Property, 
Communications, 
Procurement, 
Commissioning 
 
9 Jan 2014 

Economic Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Report Head of Regeneration 
e-mail: 
paul.wheatley@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01522 550600 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 35



P
age 36

T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
Policy and Scrutiny 

 

Open Report on behalf of Executive Director for Communities 

 

Report to: Economic Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 29 October 2013 

Subject: RAF Scampton Feasibility Study  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This paper provides a summary of the findings of the RAF Scampton Feasibility 
Study recently completed for Lincolnshire County Council and The Royal Air 
Force by Focus consultants. 
 

 

Actions Required: 

It is recommended that members: 
 
Note the findings of the Feasibility Study and support the proposed next step 
actions. 
 

 
1. Background
 
Royal Air Force Scampton is one of six operational RAF bases in Lincolnshire. 
Situated in West Lindsey the base represents one of the largest concentrations of 
employment in that district, with somewhere in the order of 800 jobs (military and 
civilian) being supported. The base is one of the oldest (due to celebrate its 
centenary in 2016) and perhaps one of the most famous within the RAF's portfolio 
(as the original home of 617 Squadron the Dambusters). 
 
The future of RAF Scampton within the RAF has been uncertain for some time. 
The base is currently home to three operating units, the most high profile of which 
is the RAFAT (the Royal Air Force Aerobatics Team) better known as the Red 
Arrows. The future of this world famous display team has also been the subject of 
much debate at a national level. Whatever the outcome of this debate, the display 
team will be faced with a degree of change between 2018 and 2020 with the 
withdrawal from service of the Hawk T1 aircraft. Any reduction in the number of 
operational units housed at RAF Scampton in the future would call in to question 
the longer term viability of the Station as an operational base. 
 
Were the RAF to withdraw from RAF Scampton and close the base, there is a real 
risk that Lincolnshire could be left with a legacy of a community within former 
military housing, with no supporting facilities, located adjacent to a large tract of 

Agenda Item 8

Page 37



brownfield (potentially contaminated by aviation fuel) land and derelict and 
decaying buildings. 
This potential scenario has led to a desire amongst Lincolnshire's local authorities 
to develop a contingency plan which could be enacted if base closure became a 
reality. 
 
Conversations with senior officers within the RAF have identified that there is a 
great deal of affection for RAF Scampton as a base within the RAF, but that the 
current financial climate requires that all branches of the armed forces seek to save 
costs and drive for efficiencies. 
 
This affection for the base within the RAF has enabled us to move from purely 
seeking to develop "an in case of closure plan" to a joint Feasibility Study 
commission that encompasses the following elements: 
 

• How could the base (its ground and air space) be reused if the RAF were to 
withdraw either later this decade or at some time beyond this in the future. 
 

• How could shared military / civilian use of RAF Scampton be developed so 
as to deliver reduced operating costs for the RAF and thereby make the 
base more tenable to them whilst at the same time increasing its 
contribution to the Lincolnshire Economy. 

 

• To raise the level of debate about the future of RAF Scampton within RAF 
High Command, The Defence Infrastructure Organisation and the MOD. 

 
Following an extensive tendering exercise, Focus Consultants (with Purcell 
Architects, RDC Aviation and TGA Comms Ltd) were appointed to deliver a 
feasibility study. The brief for the study is appended. 
 
A three stage approach has been used by Focus. 
 
Stage 1- To develop a Baseline Report which identifies: 
 

• Stakeholder opinions and aspirations for shared use/ redevelopment 

• Comparator information 

• The current use of buildings within the base and their condition (limitations 
and opportunities) 

• Other limiting factors 
 
Stage 2 - Detailed options testing with stakeholders 
 
Stage 3 – Develop the preferred option looking at: development phasing, capital 
costs, potential visitor market share, operational models and likely revenue 
account, in order to present a well worked up viable proposal. 
 
The Findings 
 
The Baseline Report developed through Stage 1 of the commission identified that 
the potential for increased airspace use on a joint military / civilian basis was not 

Page 38



feasible given the requirements of RAFAT. This effectively ruled out the option of 
developing the base as a commercial or leisure aerodrome alongside RAF use. 
 
The level of usage of buildings on the site was found to be low with a number of 
1960's / 70's accommodation blocks, the former motor pool and one hangar in 
particular not being used. Of the unused buildings, only the Hangar is listed and 
could not therefore easily be demolished. Clearance of other buildings to facilitate 
new build was found to be feasible.  
 
The stakeholder group (which included the Executive Director for Communities, 
Chief Executive, Leader Of the Council, Executive Councillor For Economic 
Development, and Executive Councillor For Heritage and Culture plus RAF 
representatives) articulated to the consultant team that their desire was to create a 
mixed use site at RAF Scampton which could either stand alongside continuing 
RAF use or be upscaled in the future to replace any withdrawal of the RAF.  
 
The background story to RAF Scampton identified that the base has a rich heritage 
which is only exploited in a small way at the current time. The stakeholder group 
felt that this should be the seed which is grown, with the aim of establishing an 
aviation focused attraction of national and international importance. 
 
It was also proposed that space which wasn’t required for the continuing RAF 
presence, and didn’t naturally lend itself to use as part of a heritage centre could 
be used for leisure purposes (such as the former officers mess where conversion 
to a themed hotel was proposed) or office accommodation for occupiers that would 
sit well alongside RAF or Heritage attraction use. 
 
Stage 2 of the study, tested the market potential of the proposed uses at various 
scales and also looked at complementarity. Through this exercise it was confirmed 
that a large heritage attraction of national or international importance would sit well 
alongside continuing RAF use at Scampton and could be grown further should 
RAF space requirements diminish in the future. Conversely if the RAF's space 
requirements at the base were to increase, this could still be achieved with a 
national scale heritage attraction in place. 
 
The final stage of the study identified that the establishment of a national or 
international scale aviation heritage attraction based on two or three of the existing 
listed hangars plus a new exhibition hall was likely to cost in the order of £80m to 
establish.  
 
Focus have suggested that if desired a phased approach to development could be 
pursued, based around delivering (at phase 1) a World War 1 attraction within one 
hangar with additional supporting structures, for 2016 (the centenary of Scampton 
as an air base). This would enable the development of an increased aviation 
heritage tourist market, whilst construction of the larger offer (based on two 
hangars plus a major new exhibition hall) is underway and scheduled for delivery 
by 2018.  
 
The consultants have identified five key stories that could be told through the site: 
The First World War, The Dambusters, Coldwar Standoff, The Red Arrows, Aircraft 

Page 39



Innovation In Lincolnshire and a frequently updated exhibition focused on "fly-in" 
exhibits e.g. BBMF). 
 
The viability assessment included in the feasibility study indicates that a 
development of the scale proposed could, with the appropriate operational 
management methodology, deliver a small annual operating surplus based on 
approximately 200,000 visitors per year (from a market of 7.1 million potential 
visitors) once phase 2 opens. This level of visitor numbers would be comparable 
with the performance of attractions such as The National Space Centre (Leicester) 
and The National Forest Attraction "Conkers", higher than Lincoln Castle but lower 
than Belton House. 
 
RAF Response To The Feasibility Study 
 
The RAF has been fully involved in the development of the feasibility study through 
the significant input of time and knowledge by the current base commander. The 
higher levels of the command structure have also been kept appraised of the 
emerging proposals and have throughout voiced their "comfort" with what is being 
proposed. The RAF is currently producing a base Masterplan for RAF Scampton, 
which will articulate their future operational requirements. It is understood that the 
process of undertaking the jointly commissioned feasibility study has led to 
consideration of a potential longer term requirement for RAF Scampton as an 
active base possibly with increased numbers of force personnel on site. This 
possibility can well sit alongside the major Heritage Attraction as proposed by 
Focus in the Feasibility Study. 
 
 
2. Conclusion
 
The Feasibility Study prepared by Focus presents a credible model for the 
development of a major new aviation heritage attraction at RAF Scampton which 
could sit alongside the current scale of military use and would be sufficiently 
flexible to work with greater or lesser RAF presence.  
 
The aviation heritage attraction would tell key stories relevant to Lincolnshire and 
its involvement in defence and aviation. It is likely to attract significant new visitors 
to the county, generating sufficient revenue to support long term operational 
sustainability of the attraction, plus spend in the local economy. 
 
To continue to develop the project it will now be necessary to socialize the 
feasibility report with potential grant funders and private sector investors, whilst 
continuing to support the RAF in developing an operational masterplan for the base 
that reflects the heritage centre proposal. Lobbying of the DIO and MOD are 
considered critical next steps to obtaining formal agreement to pursuing a joint 
military / civilian usage of the current base. 
 
 
3. Consultation 
 
 
 

 

 

 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

Page 40



n/a 
 

 
 

4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Consultants Brief 

Appendix B Feasibility Executive Summary and visuals 

 
 

5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
 
This report was written by Paul Wheatley, who can be contacted on 01522 550600 
or Paul.wheatley@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

RAF Scampton - Feasibility Study for an Aviation Heritage Attraction and 
related Site Development Options - Brief – March 2013 
 
If you live in Lincolnshire the sights and sounds of the RAF are never far away: the 
Red Arrows practising a new manoeuvre over Lincoln, the eye catching shape of 
AWACS around Waddington and the formidable Euro fighters out of RAF Coningsby.  
 
To see in our big skies the Lancaster, Hurricane and Spitfire of the Battle of Britain 
Memorial Flight returning after a weekend display stirs images of dark, but heroic 
days and is evocative of a proud and far reaching heritage.  
 
Military flying in Lincolnshire began in World War I when both the Royal Flying Corps 
(RFC) and the Royal Naval Air Service (RNAS) established airfields.  By the end of 
WWI there were 36 airfields or landing strips in the county.  Outside of London, 
Lincoln was the second largest aircraft manufacturing centre in the country during 
that period.  During World War II there were 45 airfields. Lincoln Cathedral was the 
iconic landmark that told a returning bomber crew that they had made it back. 
 
There are stories to tell here: from the very personal, through aviation engineering 
excellence, to those of our national security. The story is also current; we are “RAF 
Lincolnshire” with a concentration of RAF bases and home to many service staff, 
their families and many more civilians whose livelihoods depend upon this presence. 
 
RAF Scampton has a rich and significant history, continued RAF presence and 
current airspace and airfield capacity.  The social and economic success of the 
Scampton site is important to the area.  These two perspectives meet in this study, 
as we ask…. 
 
Can Lincolnshire create an enhanced aviation heritage attraction and aviation 
centre of excellence of national importance, whilst also ensuring that the site’s 
continued use as an RAF base further benefits the local area by regenerating 
facilities and bringing them back into community and economic use by 
utilising the site’s specific characteristics? 
 
In short, Lincolnshire’s aim is to see RAF Scampton remain an important operational 
base and fulfil its potential as a valuable cultural, historic and economic asset for the 
county.  

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 Whilst the future of RAF Scampton, four miles north of Lincoln, has often been 
uncertain and under discussion, there have been indications that the RAF will 
continue to base the Red Arrows there “until the end of the decade”.  Beyond 
that the future of the air base is not clear.  Agreement has been reached with 
the RAF that the timing is right to commission a feasibility study to establish 
how to bring back into use, and maximise the social and economic potential of 
the site in conjunction with its operations as and RAF station.  At its heart, is 
the feasibility of developing and operating an aviation heritage attraction and 
centre of aviation excellence at RAF Scampton in partnership with the RAF. 

 

Page 43



 

 

1.2 RAF Scampton has a rich history we want to tell. Aviation activity at Scampton 
began after the First World War, through which it developed as a Royal Flying 
Corps station, and will mark its centenary in 2016.  World War II saw transfer 
to Bomber Command, the 617 Squadron, the Dambusters and Guy Gibson; 
post war there was US Strategic Air Command in the late 40’s.  Moving on to 
the Cold War era, it was home to the Vulcan Bomber in the 50’s and 60’s 
through Strike Command and many Cold War stories.  Of course today it is 
home to the most high profile RAF activity all - the Red Arrows.   
 

1.3 We want to examine the unique potential of the site’s past and present to 
contribute to the area’s social and economic development. The critical point is 
that RAF Scampton remains operational and, through intensification and 
shared use, the site fulfils its potential as a valuable and integrated cultural, 
historic and economic asset for Lincolnshire.  A specific feature of the site 
which might attract employers is its location on the A15 and the security 
offered as being part of an operational RAF base.  We see three main areas 
of potential: 
 
1. Creating an aviation heritage facility, which enhances what has been 

instigated by dedicated volunteers, at the heart of an aviation centre of 
excellence 

2. Broadening and intensifying use of the airfield and airspace  
3. Regeneration of un-used, underused and ancillary facilities on the site for 

the benefit of the local and wider community, to create and retain jobs and 
to generate value to the local economy. 

 
1.4 This brief sets out the Vision and Concept, Context and Requirements for the 

study, and the outputs and timescales that need to be met.  

2. Building on success - The Lincolnshire Partnership and Investment 
Context 

 
2.1      Lincolnshire County Council has a strong partnership ethos and track record 

of developing, investing in, and operating heritage attractions.  A notable 
example is our relationship with the RAF at the Battle of Britain Memorial 
Flight in Coningsby. With thousands of displays and tens of thousands of fly-
pasts, the BBMF proudly represents the nation’s aviation heritage and the 
visitor centre has welcomed over 400,000 visitors. 

 
2.2      Another high profile example of joint working and investment in the County 

and City of Lincoln’s heritage is the current £20million investment in Lincoln 
Castle to bring about a step change in the offer by 2015.  Within its unique 
historic uphill Lincoln setting, we are creating a world class visitor attraction 
which is a catalyst for economic and cultural development in the City and 
County.   

 
2.3 Showcasing the iconic Magna Carta and the area’s rich history, we are 

creating one of the Country’s top historic attractions.  The Heritage Lottery 
Fund has allocated a grant of £12m for the major programme of 
improvements, which include creation of a new vault to showcase Magna 

Page 44



 

 

Carta and the Charter of the Forest; completion of a circuit of medieval wall 
walks and opening up the Victorian prison.  This is steered by the historic 
Lincoln Partnership involving Lincolnshire County Council, Lincoln Cathedral, 
University of Lincoln, Bishop Grosseteste University, City of Lincoln Council, 
Visit Lincoln and Lincoln Business Improvement Group.   

 
2.4      On strategic planning, the Central Lincolnshire Joint Planning Committee and 

Joint Planning Unit are in place developing Local Development Framework 
documents, notably a Joint Core Strategy involving 4 local authorities 
(Lincolnshire County Council, City of Lincoln Council, North Kesteven District 
Council and West Lindsey District Council).   

 
2.5     Scampton lies in the West Lindsey district in Lincolnshire.  The County Council 

and West Lindsey District Council have strong ties and the common aim of 
securing a successful future for Scampton. Other military bases in West 
Lindsey have become a problem for the area –poor housing stock, isolated 
communities, and under/unutilised land.  We do not want Scampton to 
become a problem; we see it as an opportunity. 

 
2.6 It is important that the feasibility study's scope considers the short to medium 

term relationship between Lincolnshire Local Government and other local 
partnerships with Scampton RAF station, the RAF and MOD more broadly, 
and other possible aviation and aviation heritage partners (for example, the 
RAF museum, Imperial War Museum, Vulcan Trust etc).  It also, however, 
needs to consider the longer term possibilities for the site and operations in 
the event of RAF and MOD change or withdrawal of use.  

 
2.7 The RAF hosted a conference of tourism businesses in 2010 with a view to 

discussing how Scampton can be used to attract tourists – this underlines all 
partners’ commitment to achieving more with the site in the longer term.   

 
2.8 There is already a popular visitor attraction on the base, where volunteers, 

with RAF support, have created a station museum.  It is s housed in one of 
the original WW2 hangers and contains over 400 artifacts (including a Blue 
Steel Missile). Entry is free, but visitors must be escorted and need to agree 
visit times so that the volunteers can be available to accompany them. 

3. Vision and concept  
 

3.1 We want to ensure RAF Scampton’s unique potential to contribute to the 
area’s social and economic development is fulfilled. Critical to this is that we 
see RAF Scampton remaining operational and, through intensification and 
shared use, it fulfils its potential as a valuable and integrated cultural, historic 
and economic asset for Lincolnshire.  We see three main areas of potential: 
 
1. Creating an aviation heritage facility of national and regional significance 

and centre of excellence which enhances what has been instigated by 
dedicated volunteers 

2. Broadening and intensifying use of the airfield and airspace  

Page 45



 

 

3. Regeneration of un-used, underused and ancillary facilities on the site for 
the benefit of the local and wider community, to create and retain jobs and 
to generate value to the local and Lincolnshire economy. 

 
3.2 We place a strong emphasis on achieving a high quality of development and 

ensuring environmental quality and green technology is prioritised in any 
development or refurbishment proposals.  The sustainable development of 
RAF Scampton, set within its wider location context, is an important principle 
to be applied.   

 
3.3 How the RAF, MOD, local authorities and other partners work together in 

partnership is as important as defining what it is possible to achieve for the 
Scampton site, so from this feasibility study stage, the work should inform and 
support a partnership approach if the case is made for development.  

 
3.4 The strength of the partnership working that has been established to date 

leads to our requirement that this study should include Imperial War Museum, 
Duxford as a sub-contractor to provide their experience and expertise from 
feasibility work and master planning of the Duxford site. 

4. Aims of the Study 
 
4.1     To consider how the physical and historical assets at Scampton can be utilised 

to develop the above vision and concept.  The three strands need to be 
explored individually and brought together into an integrated whole.   

 
4.2     Aviation Heritage Attraction and Centre of Excellence – Explore feasibility 

and options for an aviation heritage facility at RAF Scampton and the 
feasibility of operating such an attraction in conjunction with its operations as 
an RAF Station. We want to explore the story that should be told, how this 
should be interpreted, and the likely audiences for it and how any such facility 
can be commercially successful. We anticipate a strong focus on people – 
both in the emphasis on stories to be told and to the interests and needs of 
likely visitors.  We expect young people and educational visits to be an 
important target audience.   

 
4.3     Important dates for consideration in implementing any plans include:  
 

·  The centenary of the formation of the RAF  

·  75th anniversary of the Dambusters raid 
 
 
4.4     The broad title to include Centre of Excellence includes recognition of the 

aviation engineering strengths of the area – indeed broader engineering 
strengths – from past expertise which grew out of agricultural engineering to 
war time consolidation to current RAF and Military operations.  The wider 
connections to Siemens and the Engineering school they have set up with the 
University of Lincoln are also connections that can be made.  

 

Page 46



 

 

 
4.5     Broadening and intensifying use of the airfield and airspace -Investigate 

the market and operational opportunities to make more use of the airfield and 
airspace, working in close conjunction with the RAF.  Examine any constraints 
and practical difficulties in more intensive usage. 

 
4.6     Regeneration - ancillary uses for community and economic benefit -   
          Review and identify scope for re-use, more intensive use and refurbishment of 

the site and buildings to reinvigorate community life and economic contribution 
of the site to the area and to Lincolnshire as a whole.  The site’s regeneration 
has two important elements: ensuring the social/community facilities that the 
base provides for the community are secured over the long term; and to 
ensure under used buildings and land help the wider economy of the area. 
The latter could include attracting technology based industries which could 
benefit from the site’s security and sysnergy with other uses on the site.. 

 
4.7     We encourage an imaginative view when developing the concept and 

scope, and also that this should be tested with potential stakeholders.  The 
study should consider what the scale and nature of such a facility should be in 
order to succeed on a practical and commercial basis.  It would need to 
explore the following:  

 

Aviation Heritage 
Attraction 

Airfield 
and 

Airspace 

Additional 
community 

and 
economic 

uses 

RAF 

Page 47



 

 

 
 
- What would be necessary for the RAF to integrate with such a facility 
(commitments over Red Arrows etc.) to make it viable for the medium to long 
term? 

 
- What layout would be proposed?  The legibility of the site needs to be 
considered in an number of ways, not least that most historic parts of the site 
are “behind the wire”, but there are a range of options which will need to be 
considered to accommodate where parts of the site can be separated, where 
shared civilian and military use is in place in secure areas and relationship to 
community and civilian areas. 

 
4.8 The object will be to determine whether there is indeed a viable option, 

identify what needs to be provided to ensure viability, and by whom, and – if 
the concept does stack up – prepare a case to be put to the MoD and the 
Councils that can be used as a basis for decision making on whether to 
commit to a highly detailed analysis and full business case. 

5. The History of the site 
 

5.1 The site’s origins as an airfield date back to 1916 when it was first built and 
used for training and as a Home Defence Flight station.  The site currently 
comprises approximately 800 hectares one of the longest runways in the 
country, and which should perhaps be considered to be a unique selling point. 

 
5.2 A lot of information is available on the history of the site, but those 

commissioned to undertake the study are expected to identify which particular 
aspects should be brought to the fore and be the focus for a feasible heritage 
attraction and shape interpretation themes and stories, including 
consideration of the style, content and delivery that should be deployed. 

6. Context of the Site  
 
6.1     The study should research and assess information which does, or could have, 

impact on the site’s development as an aviation heritage attraction and other 
relevant and related uses. The following scope of information to be included is 
set out as a starting point: 

 

· Size, Location, Connectivity  and Access 
 

· Site Title and Ownership, statutory listing, restrictions and covenants, 
site characteristics, constraints and current use 
 

· Planning Context of the site and its wider context  
 

o Planning framework and policy context (District, Central 
Lincolnshire, Lincolnshire and wider) 

 

Page 48



 

 

o Economic Development and Tourism Strategies and plan 
relevant to the site (see references to available information)  
 

o Other current or planned projects and investments relevant to 
Scampton (see references to available information below)  

 

· RAF, MOD and Defence Infrastructure Organisation current and future 
motivations, plans and views on development (for example on 
Freehold/leasehold options) 

7. Requirements 
 
7.1     To deliver a robust feasibility study which provides high quality presentation of 

development options for the site which can be used to inform decisions about 
the site’s development in the manner set out as the Vision and Concept.  

 A sufficient scope and depth and financial and commercial appraisal should 
be provided to enable preparation of business cases for any budget or 
investment decisions from interested parties 
 

7.2     The study is expected to examine and report on all strands of the Vision and 
Concept we have set out and how these can be brought together into an 
integrated development: 
 

1. Creating an aviation heritage facility of national and regional 
significance and centre of excellence which enhances what has been 
instigated by dedicated volunteers 

2. Broadening and intensifying use of the airfield and airspace  
3. Regeneration of un-used, underused and ancillary facilities on the site 

for the benefit of the local and wider community, to create and retain 
jobs and to generate value to the local and Lincolnshire economy. 

 
7.3     The study should develop and test the stated Vision and Concept for RAF 

Scampton through research, analysis and stakeholder engagement:  
 

· For the site 

· For the partnership and governance arrangements  

· For development principles – ie sustainable development, strong 
emphasis on environmental quality and green technology, balancing 
needs and benefits of secure site with legibility and ease of access and 
movement 

· Development options 

· Infrastructure requirements 

· Financial feasibility and funding options 
 
7.4.  The study should explore and put together the story and how it should be 

interpreted.  The product(s) that best enable that story to be told should be 
developed and a Market Analysis undertaken for the elements of the project 
and overall: 

 

Page 49



 

 

· Aviation Heritage and Tourism - especially as a major “gateway” site to 
Lincolnshire’s aviation heritage. National and local market, including  
competitor analysis; gaps in the market and provision; scope for 
relocation or co-location of established offers, scope for collaboration or 
extension of existing provision  

· Visitor attractions market – set within national analysis, the degree to 
which aviation heritage could be part of a wider visitor attraction, where 
Lincolnshire could be a location to fill a national gap in the market 
and/or opportunities to showcase wider aspects of Lincolnshire’s 
current economy and/or and economic history (especially Aviation and 
engineering)  

· Technical Training opportunities, especially in collaboration with the 
Royal Air Force Museum  

· Taking the site and location as a whole, potential for ancillary 
complementary uses, including: 

 
o Housing - any unique housing product opportunities related to 

aviation facilities  
 

o Employment – taking account of current employment uses and 
facilities, potential for further development  (aviation related and 
otherwise);  
 

o Commercial property assessment – specific analysis of the 
potential for use of buildings on the site, eg Officers Mess 
 

o Non-military aviation 
 

o Leisure, culture, tourism and heritage activities and attraction(s) 
 

o The study should include a sensitivity analysis based on worst, 
best and mean case projections 

 
7.5     What infrastructure investment would be required? 
  

· Provide an assessment of the capital costs required to establish the 
project and suggest possible phasing and sources of funding 

· Assess the potential market for the heritage attraction  

· Outline revenue income and expenditure projections for a new facility, 
including an indication of the optimum size of attraction to achieve a 
self-financing business model 

· What, if any, commercial enterprises would be required to support the 
viability of the heritage centre 

 
In assessing and testing the scope and gaps in the market for an aviation 
facility, the study will need to engage with possible partners (e.g. RAF 
Museum, IWM, Aviation Heritage Lincolnshire, the Vulcan Trust etc.) to see 
what might be acceptable, necessary or possible in terms of relocation or new 
investment to achieve critical mass and viability at RAF Scampton and to 

Page 50



 

 

assess potential for co-location, cross-promotion or complementary offers, 
both from within Lincolnshire but also in the national context. 

 
7.7     Site and operational appraisal  
 
 The site’s current and potential future ability to accommodate an aviation 

heritage attraction and/or any of the identified market opportunities should be 
examined and set out, including any infrastructure or other requirements 
identified (for more detailed investigation if necessary).  The RAF and MOD’s 
views on how any additional development on the site would operate should be 
sought and appraised, along with any other partners or potential partners 
identified in the course of the study.  

 
7.8  Concept and Operational Feasibility, including Development Options and 

Initial Financial and Development Appraisals 
 

The concept, market, site development and operational analysis should be 
brought together (through SWOT, PEST or other appropriate methodologies) 
to present the findings and make recommendations on if/how the concept 
should be developed.  If recommendations are to proceed to a full business 
case, the scope, emphasis and further work required should be clearly 
identified.   

 
The partners and stakeholders (current or potential) should be clearly 
identified, their views and likely terms of further engagement set out and 
partnership and governance recommendations made which reflect the 
priorities and views identified.  Initial financial and development appraisal 
findings should be set out, including highlighting possible public and private 
sector funding, capital and revenue streams that are critical to development 
and on-going viability of an attraction specifically and the site generally.   

 
7.9     The next steps – how to take the work forward 
 
 Depending upon the findings of the feasibility study, the consultants should 

work with LCC as the client to set out the next steps in developing not only 
What could be delivered, but How and When.   

8. Outputs  
 
8.1  A robust feasibility study which provides high quality presentation of if and 

how the concept and vision can be delivered, development options for the 
site, with indicative plans, which can be used to inform decisions about the 
site’s development in the manner set out as the Vision and Concept.  

 
8.2 The study’s report should provide sufficient scope and depth and financial and 

commercial appraisal to enable preparation of business cases for any budget 
or investment decisions from interested parties.  Any second stage, more 
detailed analysis requirements should be identified and quantified.  
Recommendations on partnership, governance and other working and 
commercial relationships necessary to proceed should also be included 

Page 51



 

 

9. Timescales 
 
The study should be completed by end of September 2013 
 

10. References 
 

English Heritage/Atkins RAF Scampton Historic Characterisation (October 2004)  
 
Francis, Paul RAF Scampton An Operational History and Gazetteer of Surviving 
Structures (June 2004)  
 
Lincolnshire County Council A Big Vision for RAF Scampton 
 
Lincolnshire County Council Aviation Heritage Lincolnshire leaflet 
 

Page 52



Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2013
	4 Place Marketing including Communications Strategy
	Appendix A

	5 Sustainable Green Technology - Advice to Businesses
	6 Review of Performance Indicator - Number of Jobs Created or Safeguarded
	Appendix A

	7 Economic Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2013/14
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	8 RAF Scampton Feasibility Study
	Scampton - Appendix A - Scampton Aviation Heritage Consultancy Brief Final Version
	Scampton - Appendix B - RAF Scampton - Sketch 1 Temporary Exhibition in Hangar 2
	Scampton - Appendix B - RAF Scampton - Sketch 2 Linking Exhibition Hall
	Scampton - Appendix B - RAf Scampton - Sketch 3 New Exhibition Hall
	Scampton - Appendix B - RAF Scampton - Sky View 2
	Scampton - Appendix B - RAF Scampton Executive Summary
	Scampton - Appendix B - RAF Scampton new eye level


